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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE

Notice is hereby g jven that the 32"d Annual General Meeting ol the Members of satia lndustries
Limited will be held on Monday, 30th September, 201 3 at 10:00 A.M. at the Registered Office
of the Company at Malout-Muktsar Road, Village Rupana, District Muktsar
(Punjab)-152 032 to transact the following businesses:-

Ordinary Business

1 . To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st
March, 2013 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date along with the
Report of the Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Sh. A.Krishna, who retires by rotation being eligible,offers
himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Sh. S.K.Arora, who retires by rotation being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To Consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED that pursuanl to provisions of Section 224 and olhet applicable provisions,
if any of the Companies Act, 1956 M/s Rakesh Bansal & Co., Chartered Accountanls,
Muktsar be and are hereby re-appolnted as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
oifice from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as may be fixed by
the Managing Director of the Company"_

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5 Appointmenl ol Director

To consider and if thought fit , to pass with or without modif ications(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED that Sh. l. D. Singh, who was appointed as an Additional Director ol the
Company by the Board oi Directors pursuant to Section 260 of the Companies Act,
1956 and holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 257
of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company subject to retirement by rotation under
the Articles ol Association of the Company"
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5. lncrease in Remuneration of Dr Aiay satia, chairman-cum-Managing Director of
the company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modif ication(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:-

"RESOLVED that in partial moditication to the Resolution no 5 passed by the Members
at the 31"!Annual General Meeting held on 29'h September,2012 approving the
appointment and terms of remuneration of Dr Ajay Satia, Chairman Cum Managing
Director of the Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
the increase in remuneration of Dr Ajay satia, chairman cum Managing Director from
Rs 400,000 PM to Rs 800,000t PM for the remaining period of his tenure of office with
effect from 01"iOctober, 2013 subject to the provisions oJ Sections 198, 269, 309, 3,l0,
314' 316, 31 7 and schedule Xlll and other applicable provisions, if any of the companies
Act' 1956 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) of the Companies Act, 1 956 and provisions of Article .11 S, 116, 1.17 & 118
and other applicable provisions of Articles of Association and subject to the approval ol
the Central Government and/or any olher authority, if required,"

'RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board ot Directors ol the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all the acts, deeds, matter and things as may be required in this regard,,.

7 Re-appointment of Sh J.R.Sharma as Director( Legal) and fixation of his
remuneration

To consider and if thought tit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:-

"RESOLVED that subject to the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309, 310, 314, 316,
317 and Schedule Xlll and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act,
1956 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the me being in
force) ot the Companies Act, 1956 and provisions oi Article 11S, 116, .117 & 118 and
other applicable provisions of Articles ol Association and subject to the approval ot the
Central Government and/or any other authority, if required, Sh J.R.Sharma, be and is
hereby re- appointed as Director (Legal) of the Company for period of three years w.e.f
01.11.2013 on the terms and conditions including remuneration as given belowi,

l. Terms:

(a) Salary: Rs. 55,000/- per month with an Annual lncrement of Rs. 5000/- per month.

(b) Perquisites/benefits

i) Reimbursement of medical and hospitalization expenses including dental and
optical treatment for selt and family subject to maximum of Rs 15000/_ pA

2



SATIA II{DUSTRIES LIMITED

ll, Sh. J.R.Sharma shall perform the duties and exercise the powers lrom time to time
which may be assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors and/or Managing
Director of the Company.

lll. Other Terms

Sh J.R.Sharma will be the occupier ot the Company for the purpose of ensuring
compliances of the provisions o{ Factories Act, 1948

"RESOLVED FURTHER that notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
contained, where in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company will pay aforesaid remuneration as minimum remuneration
to Sh. J. R. Sharma, Director (Legal).'

"RESOLVED FURTHEF that the Board ot Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized 1o do all the acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required
in this regard"

Place : Rupana
Dated : 13.08.2013

By Order of the Board
For Satia lndustries Ltd.

(Rakesh Kumar Dhuria)
Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint proxy to
attend and vote on poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. The proxies should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than forty eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report at the Meeting.

3. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address, to the
Registered Office of the Company.

4. All documents as referred in the above notice and explanatory statement are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all working
days between 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. up to the date of Annual General Meeting.

5. Members seeking any information with regards to Annual Accounts at the time of
Meeting, are requested to send their queries to the company so as lo reach at least ten
days before the date of Meeting, to enable the management to keep the relevant
information ready at the time of Meeting.

6. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from 25rh September, 2013 to 30th September, 2013 both days inclusive.

7. Explanatory statement pursuant to section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect
ol item No. 5 to I of the notice is annexed herewith.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REOUIRED UNDER SECTION 173(2) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

Item No 5

Sh. l.D.Singh was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board w.e.l. 14.05.2019 in
term of Articles 109 of the Articles of Association of the Company. pursuant to Section 260
of the Companies Act, 1956 he holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting
and is eligible for appoinlment as Director. The Company has received a notice in writing
from a shareholder under Section 257 ol the Act proposing his name for the appointment as
Director of the Company. No equity share of the Company is being held by Sh. l.D.Singh.
Keeping in view his experience, the Board recommends his appotntment.

A brief profile of Sh. LD-Singh and other information as per clause 49 ol the listing agreement
with Stock Exchange are provided here below. None of the Director except Sh. l.D. Singh is
interested in the resolution.
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Item No 6

Keeping in view the performance o{ the company under the leadership of Dr Ajay satia,

Managing Director in the past and ongoing project, the remuneration committee and the

Board of Directors in their respective meetings held on 13.08.2013 have approved the increase

in remuneration of Dr. Ajay satia, chairman-cum-Managing. Director of the company lor the

remaining period of his tenure of office w.e.f 01.10.2013. As per provisions of the Companies

Act, approval ol shareholders is required. Therefore, the Board recommends the resolution

for your approval by way of special resolution.

Item No.7

sh.J.R.sharma aged 74 years is bachelor in Law. He has rich and varied experience in

administration, personnel, legal and liasoning. The Board of Directors in their meeting held

on 13.08.2013 have approved the appolntment of Sh. J.R.Sharma as Director (Legal) on

payment of remuneration and other terms as set out in the resolution and approved by the

remuneration Committee meeting held on 13.08.2013.As per the provisions of the Companies

Act,1956 read with schedule Xlllthereof, approval of shareholders is required forthe purpose.

Hence, the Board recommends the resolution for your approval by way of special resolution.

The information as required under schedule x11 1 of the companies Act, 1956 is given

hereunder:

1. General lnformation

Nature ol lndustry

Satia lndustries limited is manufacturing writing and printing paper

Commercial Production

As on March 31"t,2013 the Company is having capacities tor manufacture as

hereunder:-

Sr No Licensed Capacity

1 Writing and Printing Paper 7s000

Financial Perlormance

During the financial year 2012-13, net revenue from operation was Rs 27845 17 lacs

and the net profit after tax of the Company is Rs 1388.18 lacs
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11 lnformation about the appointee

Background details

sh.J'R.sharma aged 74 years is bacheror in Law. He has rich and varied experience in
administration, personnel, legal and liasoning.

Job Profile and his suitabitity

Remuneration proposed

Keeping in view the responsibilities assigned to sh J.R.sharma and his rore in the
Company, it is proposed to re-appoint Sh J.R.Sharma as Director (Legal) of the Company
on the monthly sarary of Rs.5500ot p.M.onry prus other afiowance and perquisites as
specified in resolution.

comparative remuneration profire with respect to the lndustry size of the company
profile of position and p€rson

Keeping in view the type of the lndustry size of the Company, responsibilities and
capabilities of sh J.R. sharma, Director (regar), the proposed remuneration is competitive
with remuneration paid by other Companies to such similar positions.

Pecuniary relationship with the Company or relationship with managerial
personnel.

Sh J.R.Sharma is a professional Director ol the Company.

111 Other intormation

Keeping the overafl scenario of the industry, the company is performing reasonabry
well. The company is strengthening its focus on quality control, strategic maiket alliances
and expansions.

The above may arso be treaied as an abstract et the terms of contracvAgreement
entered into between the company and sh J.R.sharma as Director (Legar) pursuant to
Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956

None of he Directors is interested in the above resolution expect Mr J.R.sharma himself.

Place : Rupana
Dated : 13.08.2013

By Order of the Board
For Satia lndustries Ltd.

(Rakesh Kumar Dhuria)
Company Secretary
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Brief Profile of Directors Seeking appointment and re-appointment

(ln Pursuance of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement)

Name Sh. A. Krishna Sh. S.K. Arora Sh. l.D. Singh

Date of Birth 01 .09.1 934 o.7.12.1554 15.04.19s0

Oualification Chemical Engineer
Pulp and Paper

Chartered Accountant B.com, LL.B
CAIIB

Experienc in specific
functional Area

Technocrat Practicing
Charteres Accountant

Banking

Directorship in

other Companies
Nit Nit Nit

Chairman/member
of Committee of
Board of Directors
of other Companies
in which he is a
Director

Nit Nit Nit

Share held in Satia
lndustries Ltd

Nit Nit Nit



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

The Directors have the pleasure of presenting the 32to Annual Report ol your company for the
Financial Year 20 1 2-1 3.

1. Financial Result:

The financial performance of your company for the year ended March 31 , 20.13 is summarized
below:-

(Rs in Lacs)

Revenue and other income 28184.O7 24254.s4

Gross Profit before interest and depreciation 4447 .5Q 2850.08

lnterest and Financial charges 1479.05 1428.49

Depreciation 'I 005.1 I 910.21

Prolit from operations (before extra-ordinary
item and tax)

1963.25 511 .38

Extraordinary ltems 68.81 '13.68

Prolit before Tax 1894.44 497 .70

Provision for taxation -Currenl Tax 0 100.29

Deferred Tax 506.26 1.63

Net Profiv (Loss) after tax 1388.18 399.04

OPERATIONS

During the financial year 2012-19, net revenue from operation was Fs 27g45.17 lacs as
compared to Rs 23925.39 lacs during the corresponding period of previous year ZOl|j-12 .

The net prolit after tax ol the company is Rs 1388.1 I lacs as compared to Rs b99.04 lacs lor
the previous year.

Your Director has decided to plough back the prolits and do not recommend any dividend.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The prevailing mood in the paper industry is sober and the continued growth is good news lor
the sector, Even better, the long-term prospects are bright as education, industry;nd changing
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lifestyle will lead to more paper consumption across diverse varieties including writing and
printing and packaging paper.

The paper jndustry has significantly increased capacity particularly in the printing and writing
paper segment where close to a million tonnes of annual capacity was added in the last three
years. The industry has invested over Rs 10,000 crore in recent years contributing to significant
groMh in capacities. There has been demand groMh that has supported lhe addition to capacity
but it has been lesser than anticipated. Paper consumption is directly Iinked to GDP growth
and this is around 5-6 per cent against projection ol 9-10 per cent on which the expansions
were based.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Particulars as prescribed under section 217(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 are given in
Annexure-A which forms part ol the Director's Report.

DIRECTORS:

lntermsof Article 113o{theArticles Association olthe Company, ShA.Krishna will retire by
rotation at the AGM and being eligible, offered himself for reappointment. Sh S.K.Arora will
retire by rotation at the AGM and being eligible, ofiered himsel{ for reappointment.

Sh l.D.Singh was appointed as an additional Director by the Board and shall hold office upto
the ensuing Annual General Meeting . Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/
reappointed , nature of their expertise in specilic lunctional areas and name ol Companies in
which they hold Directorship and membership/chairmanship of Board Committees as stipulated
under clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with Slock Exchanges are provided in the Annexure
to the Notice lor Annual General Meeting.

Your Company has appointed Sh J.R.Sharma as Direclor (Legal) lor a period of five years
w.e.f 01.11.2008. Since the terms ot appointment of Sh J.R.Sharma , Director legal come to
an end on 01.11.2013, the Board ol Directors olthe Company recommends his re-appointment
along with remuneration for a lurther period ol three years w.e.l 01 .11 .2013

AUDITORS:

M/s Rakesh Bansal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Muklsar, the Statutory Auditors of the
Company retire at the conclusion of the lodhcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

The Company has received letter lrom them to the effect that their reappointment, il made,
would be within the prescribed limils under Section 224(18) of the Companies Act, 1956 and
that they are not disqualified lor such reappointment within the meaning ol Section 226 of the
said Act.

AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors' Report on the Accounts is self explanatory and requires no comments.

b.

7.
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8. Cost Audit

Pursuant to the provisions oi Section 2338 of the Companies Act, 1956 and subject to the
approval of Central Government, the Board of Directors of your Company has re- appointed
M/s R.J.Goel & Co. Cost Accountants, New Delhi as Cost Auditor for the accounting year
2013-14 to carry out an aud;t of cosl account of the Company.

9. SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

The Company continues to maintain a good safety record. The manulacturing units of the
Company are environment friendly and maintain all salety standards and measures.

10. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

lnformation as required under Section 217(2A) oI the Companies Act, 1956, read with the
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended,

"Not Applicable, No employee of the Company is drawing the salary as specified under
Companies (Particulars ol Employees) Rules, 1975. "

11. DIRECTORS' RESPONSBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to requirement of Sectjon 217(2AAl of the Companies Act, 1 956, with respect to
Directors Responsibility Statement the Board of Directors hereby report that:

- in the preparation ol the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

- the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consisten y and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
lair view of thestate of affairs of theCompanyaithe end ol the linancial yearand of the
prolit or loss ol the company for the period.

- the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 tor
saleguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities

- the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

12. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The lndusirial Relations throughout the year remained cordial as has been the case lor the
last many years.

13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listlng Agreements
with the Stock Exchanges in lndia lorms part of the Annual Report. Certificate from theAuditors
ol the Company, M/s. Rakesh Bansal & Co., and conlirming compliance of conditions of
corporate Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid clause 49, is annexed to this Report.

10
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14. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis Repori tor the year under revieq as stipulated under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, is presented in a separate
section forming part ol the Annual Report.

15, ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere gratitude and appreciation forthe assistance
and co-operation received trom the Government of lndia, Government of Punjab, the Financial
lnstitutions, Puniab National Bank, Central Bank ol lndia, Members, Customers and Business
Constituents for their continued support and co - operation.

We also place on record our sincere appreciation lor the contribution made by the employees
at all levels. Our consistent growth is made possible by their devout, sihcere and unstinted
services.

for and on behalt of the Bbard of Directors

PLACE : Rupana ( DTAJAY SATIA) (R. K. BHANDARD
DATE : 13.08.2013 Chairman-Cum- Managing Direclor Whole Time Director

t1



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN RESPECT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS)
RULES, 1988

A. Conservation of Energy

(a) Regular preventive maintenance ol all capital goods, equipments are being carried out.

FORM- A

(Form lor Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation ol Energy)

A Power and Fuel Consumption Current Yeal
ended 31.03.2013

Previous Year
ended 31 .03.20'12

1 ELECTRICITY

Purchased Units (Lacs KWH) 256.44 377 .31

Total amount (Rs in Lacs) 1762.54 1997.15
Rate/unit (Rs) 6.87 5.29

2 T.G.Set

Own Generation (net) (lacs Kwh) 619.88 471.12
Total cost (Rs in Lacs) 1260.41 998.99
Cosvunit (Rs) 2.03 2.12

3 Rice Husk (Used in Boiler)
Quantity (Tonnes) 128718 122688
Total Cost (Rs in Lacs) 511 9.44 4487 .42

Average Rate (Rs per tones) 3977 3658
4 Furnace Oil

Ouantity (Tonnes) 508.23 617.510
Total Cost (RS in Lacs) 209.83 244.26
Average Rate (Rs in tones) 41246 39555

5 Others

Quantity (Tonnes) 290.79 31 .330

Total Cost ( Rs in Lacs) 20.32 1460304
Average Rate (Rs in tones) 6987 46610

6 Consumption Per Unit of Production
Production Paper (MT) 68869 63222
Electricity (KWH) 1272 1342
Rice Husk (MT) 1 .869 1 .941

Others (MT) 0 012 0.010

t2
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FORM - (B)

(Form lor Disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption)

1 Research & Development

Specific area in which R & D carried out by the company

1. Paper Machines

a. Machine no.1

Steam and condensate system, Sectional drives in place of line shaft, wire part
conliguration changing from knock down to cantilever system, installation of hood above
the dryers and approach flow modification with double dilution fan pumps. These changes
resulted in increasing Paper Machine-1 efficiency and reduction in steam consumption
from 3.0 to 2.7 Vl ol finrshed production resulting in steam energy saving and lower
production cost .

VFD was provided for fan pump, thereby around 22 kW per hour power was saved.

b. Machine No.3

Total press part lrames, steam and condensate system, wire part elements were changed.
Due to press part change the dryness of paper sheet increased lrom 38y" lo 42k,
resulting in reduction in steam consumption from 2.9 to 2.6 T/T of linished paper. Due to
change of steam and condensate system and other modifications there was signilicant
implementation in machine efficiency & cost reduction.

2. Pulping

a. 2nd stage wet washing was commissioned during the financial year and this has helped
in reducing the chlorides / potassium / silica. Due to reduction of the above the lile of the
pulp mill equipments has increased marginally and also the chlorides in black liquor was
come down from 7 to 4%. This has helped in smooth chemical recovery operation and
steam generation per ton of solids lired was increased from 2.0 to 2.2 tons.

b) All washers were provided back water washing shower which helped in reduction in
lresh waler consumption particularly in bleach washers-

b. Paper machine back water was taken in a 300 M3 tower for storing and using the same
whenever the pulp mill is in operation. This has helped to reduce machine back water
wastage during pulp mill stoppage.

3. Chemical Recovery

a. Recovery boiler condensate vapours which were venting out to the atmosphere were
taken into hot water tank for generating hot water. This water is being used in Pulp mill for
better washing oJ the unbleached Pulp.

13



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

b. To reduce the feed wBL temperature inret to evaporator, one {rash tank is provided and
has helped in mainiaining the vacuum level in evaporator plant.

4. Utilities

Replacement ot Air preheater Tubes

Air Pre-heater upgraded and repaired to improve overalr boiler efficiency. After repairing of
APH tubes, airtemperature increased from ambient to 120"C leading to beiter boiler efficie-ncy
and less fuel consumption per ton of steam.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO:

(Rs .in Lacs)

8.02

13.72

81.74

1220.20

2.49

2.81

o.20

16.55

7.75

Expenditure tor the year ended gl st March, 2013 is as under :-

(i) Earning in foreign exchange.

(ii) Expenditure in foreign currency.

(ClF Vatue ot imports (a) Capital coods

(b) Store & Spares

(C) Raw Materiat)

For Travel

lnterest

Bank Charges

Legal, Fees and subscription

Repair

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

PLACE : Rupana
DATE : 13.08.2013

( Dr AJAY SATTA)
Chaarman-Cum- Managing Director

(R. K. BHANDARD
Whole Time Director

I4
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Corporate Governance Report 201 2-1 3

A. Company'sPhilosophy

Gooci governance generates goodwill among business partners, customers and investors,
earns respect from society, brings about a consistenl sustainable growth for the Company
and generates competitive returns for the investors. Your Company is committed to the
principles of good governance. The Company continues to focus on good Corporate
Governance and its objective is to create and adhere to integrity, transparency and
accountability for etticieni and ethical conduct of business for meeting its obligation towards
shareholders and other Stakeholders.

The Board applies integrity, principles of good governance and accountability throughout its

activities and each Director brings independence of character and judgment to the role. AII

of the members of the Board are individually and collectively aware of their responsibilities
to the company's stakeholders.

B. tsoard ot Directors

Cornposition ot Board

Th€ Board of Directors comprised ol an Executive Chairman-Cum-Managing Director, two
whole time Directors, four independent non-executive Directors. The Composition of the
Board is in conformity with clause 49, which requires that at least 50 percent of the Board
consist ot non-executive Direciors and in case the Chairman is a non executive Director at
least one third of the Board should comprise of independent Directors.

Number of Board Meelings

The Board monitors compliance ot objectives by holding managemenl accountable for its
acti./it;es through qua*erly performance repoding. Board and committee meetings are held
in an atmosphere of inieilectual honesty, requiring reporting of the highesi standard by
management and constructive debate among Board and Commiitee Mernbers.

During the financial year 2012-13, fou!'Board Meetiirgs were held on the following dates

1) 14-05-2012,

2) 13-08-2012

3) 08-11-2412

4) 12-02-2013

The Maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than four months.

15
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The composition of Board of Directors and their attendance at the Board meetings during the year
and at last Annuar cenerar Meeting or the company as arso the number of othei Directoiship and
committee Membership/ Chairmanship as on 31 .03.20.1 3 are as follows:_

CMD - Chairman-Cum-ManagingDirector

WTD - Whole Time Director

INED - lndependent Non-Executive Director

Note: 1. lncludes directorship in public limited companies only

The lndependent Directors of Satia Industries Ltd.

> apart from receiving Directors remuneration i.e srtting fees, do not have any materiar pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the company, its promoters, its Directors. its senior
management or its associates which may affect independence of the Directors.

> Are not related to promoters or persons occupying managemenr positions at the Board revel
or at one level below the Board.

> have not been executive or the company in the immediatery preceding three financiar years.
> Are not partner or executives or were not parlner or an executives during the preceding three

years

> statutory Audit firm or the internar Audit Firm that is associated with the company.
. Legal firm and consulting firm that is associated with the Company

; Are nol material suppriers, service providers or customers or ressees of the company which
may affect independence of the Directors.

As provided in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, none of the Directors is member ol more than
10 Board level committees or a Chairman of more than 5 such committees.

16

Sr
No,

Attended
AGM

Chairman

Dr. Ajay Satia CIVD 4 Yes

2. Sh. R. K. Bhandari WTD 4 Yes

Sh. A. Krishna INED 4 No

4. Sh. A. C. Ahuja INED 4 Yes I

5. Sh. J. R. Sharma WTD 4 No

6. Sh. S. K. Arora INED No
7. Sh. Dinesh Shama INED 4 No
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A . Audit Committee and Attendance at its meeting is given hereunder:-

The Audit committee as on March 3i, 2013 (reconstituted on 1s.11.2011) comprised of three
Directors, Two being non-executive and independent Directors viz. sh. A.c.Ahuja, sn. n r<ri.nn" a
one whole Time Director viz. sh. R. K. Bhandari. The lerms of relerence of Audii committee are as
contained in the section 2924 of the companies Act, 19s6 and also as contained in the clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement. The primary objective of the Audit committee is to monitor 

"no 
prouioe

eJfeclive supervision ofthe management's financial reporting process with a view to ensure accurate,
timely and proper disclosures, transparency, integrjty and quality of financial reporting.

During the year under review, rour (4) Meetings of Audit committee were herd on 14.05.2012,
13.08.2012, 08.11.2012. 12.02.2013. The composition ol Audit committee & attendance of the
members at the Committee Meetings during the year are as under:-

Sr. No. Name ol Member Stalus in
Commitlee

Directorship No. of Meetings
attended

'l Sh.A.C.Ahuja Chairman lndependent Director 4

2. Sh. R. K. Bhandari Member Whole 'lime Director 4

3. Sh A.Krshna Member lndependent Director 4

CEO/CFO Certification

The company is lurry cognizant of, committed to and adhering to the statutory requirements for
internal controls as set out by the securities and Exchange Board of lndia. Accordingly, the chairm;n
and the chief Financial officer have duly verilied and cerlified to the Board for com[iny's procedure
and internal controls or the repofting as being lu[y compriant with sEBr guiderines.

The chairman and the cFo have certified to the Board by placing a certificate thereol on the
Financials ol the Company that:

(a) They have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for lhe year and that to
the best of their knowledge and belief:-

i) these slatements do not contain any materially untrue stalemenl or omit any materjal fact
or contain statemenls that might be misleading;

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view ol the company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, appricabre raws and regurations.

(b) There are, to the best of their knowredge and belief; no transactions entered into by the
company during the year, which are fraudurent, il|egar or viorative of rhe company's coie or
conduct.

(c) They accept responsibility tor establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that they have evaruated the effectiveness of internar contror systems of the compani
pedaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors;nd theAudit committe;,
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deficiencies in the design or operation of such inlernal controls, if any, o{ which they are aware
and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that:

There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the
year.

i) there has been no significant changes in accounling policies during the year and that the
same have been disclosed in the notes lo the {inancial stalements; and

ii) there are no instances of significant fraud ol which they have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, o{ the management or an employee having a significant role

in the company's internal control system over linancial reporting.

Remuneration to Directors

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company (reconstituted on 14.05.2012) reviews recommends
and approves the matters connecled with fixation and periodic revisjon ol the remuneration package
relating to the N4anaging Director and Whole Tlme Directors including compensation and payments.

The Composition ol the Remuneration Committee & attendance of the members at the Committee
l\4eetings during the year ended 31 .03.2013 are as lollows:-

Name ol Directors Position category No ol Meeting attended

Sh A.C,Ahuja Chairman Independent Director One

Sh A.Krishna Member -do- One

Sh S.K.Arora Member -do- Nit

Managing Director and Whole Time Directors are appointed as per agreement and are being paid

remuneralion as approved by the Board and the shareholders. Sitting fees are paid to the Directors
for attending the meetings ol the Board of Directors/ Committees thereof . The detail of remuneration
paid 10 directors during the period ended March 31, 2013 is as under:-

Sr. No. Name oJ Director Sitting Fee (Rs.) Salary (Rs.) P.F. Others Toial

1 Dr.Ajay Satia 5400000 9360 88930 5498290

2. Sh.R.K.Bhandari 2058065 9360 61360 2128785

3. Sh.A.Krishna 37500 37500

4. Sh.A.C. Ahuja 37500 37500

Sh J.R Sharma 530887 9.148

6. Sh S.K.Arora 5000 5000

7. Sh Dinesh Sharma 20000 20000
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Share Transfer System

ln order to expedite the process of transfer of securities, the Board of Directors has constituted a
Share Transfer Committee comprising of Dr. Ajay Satia and Sh. R.K.Bhandarj, during the year
under review, No share Transler Committee Meeting was held and there is no pending transfer of
shares.

Investor Grievance Committee

The lnvestor Grievance Committee of the Company for the year ended 31.03,2013 under the
Chairmanship of Sh. A.Krishna, a non executive Director looks after the work of redressal ol
investors/ shareholders complaints. The other members of the Committee are Dr. Ajay Satia & Sh.
R. K. Bhandari. No meeting ol Investor Gr;evance Committee was held during the year under
review, as the company has not received a single grievance/complaint from the investors/
shareholders.

General Body Meetings

The lasl three Annual General Meetings were held as under:-

,kication - . '

1 2011-'12 29.09.2012 10.00AM At Regd. Office; Muktsar-Malout
Road, Vill.Rupana Distt. Muklsar

2 2010- 11 30.09.2011 10.00AM At Regd. Otfice; Muktsar-Malout
Road, Vill.Bupana Distt. MuKsar

J 2009-10 26.O7.2010 10.00 AM At Regd. Office; Muktsar-Malout
Road, Vill.Rupana Distt. MuKsar

Four (4) special resolution were passed at the last three ( 3) Annual General Meetings of the
Company.

Disclosures

There was no materially signilicant related party transaction, piecuniary transactions or relationships
between the Company and its Directors, Promoters, or the management that may have potential
conflict with the interest oJ the company.

Compliance made by the Company

The Company has made the compliance of the stock exchanges, SEBI and other statutory
authorities on all matters related to capital markel.
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Means of Communication

i) The management discussion andAnalysis Report lorms part of the Annual Report asan
addition to the Directors' Report.

General Shareholders inlormation

(a) Annual General Meeting

Date and time : 30rh September, 2013 (10 AM)

Venue ' l, Regd. Office MuKsar-Malout Road

, VPO Rupana, Distt" Muktsar - 152032

(b) Financial Calendar

Nelit Financial Year April 1 , 2013 to March 31 , ZO14

The linancial results will be adopted as per the lollowing tentative schedule

For 1$ Quarter ended on 30.06-2019

For 2"d Quarter ended on 30.09.2013

For 3'd Quarter ended on 31 .12.2013

For the year ended on 31.03.2014

August, 2013

November, 2013

February, 2014

May,2014

(c) Date ol Book closure

(d) Dividend payment date

(c) Listing on Stock Exchanges

Equity shares of the company are
Exchange.

(d) Stock Code

Delhi Stock Exchange (19035)

Ludhiana Stock Exchange (SETI)

(e) Market Price Data

25h September, 2013 to 30h September, 2013 (Both
days inclusive)

N. A.

on Ludhiana Stock Exchange and Delhi Stocklisted

There was no trading of shares on the stock exchange during the F.y.2012-13
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No. oJ:equity . "''
.sharesheld..:

UPTO 5OO 196 67 .42 37900 0.3790

501 - 1000 34 11.76 24550 o.2455

1001- 2000 17 5.88 22550 o.2255

2001 - 3000 4 1 .38 9625 0.0963

3001 - 4000 4 lJ.1 12500 0.1250

4000 - 5000 2 U.bY 9600 0.0960

5001 - 10000 1 0.35 6500 0.o650

l OOO1 AND ABOVE 31 10.72 987677s 98.767

TOTAL 289 100.00 10,00,00,000 100.0000

(f) Distribution ot shareholding as on March 31, 2013

(l) Categories of shares as on 31 .03.2013

(g) Demalerialization of shares & liquidity

The shares of the Company are in demat and available in depository system of both NSDL and
CDSL.

2t

sil{d.: "/"age

1 Promoter

(a) Core Promoter

(b) Friends/Relatives

4088156

1572AOO

40.88

15.73

2 Financial lnstitutions 0 0.00

.t. Public 4339044 43.39

4. Banks 0 0.00

5. Others 0 0.00

Total 10000000 '100.00
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(h) Registrar & Transter Agents :

The details of .Registrar & Transfer Agent appointed by the Company are as under:-

Beetal Financial & Computer Services (p) Ltd
Beetal House, 3d Floor, 99 Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Centre,
New Delhi

(k) Plant location : Muktsar-Malout Road,
Vill. Rupana
Distt. Muktsar (Punjab)

(l) lnvestors correspondence : MuKsar-Malout Road,
Vill Rupana,
Distt. MuKsar-1 52026(Punjab)

for and on behalf ot the Board of Directors

PLACE : Rupana
DATE : 13.08.2013

( DTAJAY SATIA) (R. K. BHANDARD
Chairman-Cum- Managing Director Whole Time Director
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Satia lndustries Ltd has developed an in house presentation system by all the department of

the Company on quarterly basis to review the operation and performance of the Company.
The Company Audit Committee and Board of Directors also meet regularly and advise for
strengthening the corporate governances, the maximization of reiurns and minimization ot

risk. The Company is having writing and Printing Paper, Chemical Recovery and Co-generation
plants at VPO Rupana, Malout -Muktsar Road, Distt Muktsar and also engaged in the trading
activities of the cotton and yarn. The Company has prepared the Balance sheet, profit and
Loss account and other statement of accounts in compliance with the requirement ol the
Companies Act, 1956 and as per mandatory accounting standard issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia

lndustry Structure and Development

lndia's Pulp and Paper industry, as one of the old and core industrial manulacturing sector
with a bearing on socio-economic development has undergone a significant change during
the last three decades, especially after liberalization with globalization and advancement in
printing sector paper manufacture were driven to adopt better technology and cost efficiency
htong witn quaiity improvement. Further analysis reveals that, apart from rising production
and consumption, erstwhile import dependent lndia, has achieved self-suff iciency and also
witnessed tremendous increase in expods since liberalization. During the same time, the
energy efficiency of the sector has improved while the raw-material consumption has seen
drasti; shift from conventional type to energy-efficient carbon-neutral non-conventional

Opportunities and threats

Your company has a very strong pulping base having capaci'ty to make sufficient agro waste
pulp besides significant capacity to make deinked pulp. along with a Strong marketing
hetwork and loyal customer base to fulfill increasing market dernand with increase in production
and productivity. Three different machines that give your company flexibility to cater to a
widei range of market are major strengths. At the same time, the major threat being faced by
ycrur corngany is the stringent environmental regulation beinq imposed by the government
increasing cohpetition with globalization and emergence of new units with latest technology,
threat of Zero import duty on paper inputs, raw material shorfage and economy of scale.

Segmentation or product wise performance

You r company has introduced a premium ouality paper 'super snow while paper' excelling in

all (iualities like brightness, formation, bulk and strength propedies and its share in total
prc,ciuction is increasing. This product has made a place lor itself in the market. Plans to
inlroduce photocopier flaper under a brand name in near future are underway. There has
ber:n good demand for coiored and azure laid paper made by your company' There has been
more than full capacity utilization of n'lanufacturing capacity of your company.

lnternal Control Systems and their adequacy

There is adequate internal contro! system in the company through lnternalAudii and regular

operations review and efforts are being made to strengthen it.
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Operating & Flnancial pertormance

Ilsjfl"r:^1":1.:- Jrom^operation of 
-the 

Company was Rs 2784s.17 tacs as compared to Rszov.c''ry racs ourno the corresoondin-g period or the previous year 2011-t e ano ttre net pioiitafter tax of the company was Hs t oSti'. i 8 racs rror A" 
-g96.d/r""" 

r"corded ror the previousyear.

Development in Human Resources,/lndustrial Relations

considering that the company has been passing through difficurt times, the human capitar ofthe company has been motivated and committeld to ori-ng g;od operating performance. Theindustrial relations are cordial.
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

TO
The Members ol Satia lndustries Ltd.

We have examined the compliance of conditions ol corporate governance by Satia industries
limited formerly known as Satia Paper Mills Ltd., forthe year ended on 31"t March 2012 as stipulated
in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance ol conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examinations were limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. lt is neither an audit
nor an expression ol opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceedrng one month against the
Company as per the records maintained by the Share Transfer Committee and Shareholders/
lnvestor Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future liability ol the
Company northe efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

Place : Muktsar
Date : 13.08.2013

For RAKESH BANSAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(RAKESH BANSAL)
Proprietor

Membership No. 090278
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FEPOHT OF THE AUDITOR'S TO TI{E SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the accompanying linancial statements of Satia lndustries Limited ("the
Compan]/'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3l , 2013, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the yearthen ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Managament is responsible fcr the preparation ol these financial statements that give a true and
tair view ol the financial position, financiai performance and cash flows of lhe Company in
accordance !.rith ihe Accounting Standards referred to in sub-seclion (3C) of section 2i1 oi the
Companies Act, 1956 ("the Act"). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
mainlenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation ol the financial
statements that give a true and lair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Our resDonsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audii in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued bythe lnstitute ol Chartered
Accountants cf lndia. Those Siandards require ihat we comply'"vith ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial staternents are
free from material rnisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in rhe financial statements. The proceCures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of ihe linancial statements, whether due to
lraud or errcr. lrl making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Company's preparation and lair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurirslances. An audit also includes evaluating the
aDpioDriateness of accounting pclicies used and the reasonableness of lhe accounting estimates
made by rnanagement, as well as evaluating ihe overa!l presefitation of the financial stalements.

We believe that the audit cvid€nce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion

ln our opinion and tc the best of our infomration and according to the explacations given io us, the
financial statements give the inforrnation required by the Act in the manner so requireC and give a
true and lair vieu., in conlormity witii the accounting princrples generally accepted in lndia:

a) in the case of ihe Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs ol the Company as at March 31 , 2013;

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of ihe profiv loss for the year ended on that date;
anci

c) in the case ol the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fiows fcr the year ended on that date.

1. As required by the Companies (Auciitor's Beport) Order, 2003 ('theordef') issued by the
Ceniral Gsrvernment of lndia in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we giv€ in
the Annexure a statement on the rnatters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.
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2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the intormation and explanations which to the best ol our knowledge
and belief were necessary lor lhe purpose of our audiu

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books

c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 oJ the
Companies Act, 1956;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the direclors as on March 31 , 2013,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualilied as on
March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) oi sub-section
(1) ol section 274 of the Companies Acl, 1956.

f) Since the Central Government has not issued any notilication as to the rate at which the
cess is lo be paid under section 441A o{ the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any
Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such cess is to be paid, no
cess is due and payable by the Company.

Place : Muktsar
Date : 14.05.2013

For RAKESH BANSAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(RAKESH BANSAL)
PROPRIETOB

MembershipNo. 090278
FRN 011474N
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The Annexure reterred to in paragraph 1 ot the Our Report ol even date to the members of
Satia Industries Limited, Rupana on the accounts ot the company lor the year ended 31"t
March, 2013.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

1 . (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parliculars including quantitative
details and situation ol fixed assets with effect from 01-04-1993. The assets record lor
the period prior to 01.04.1993 has reportedly been destroyed in fire.

b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verilied by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verificalion.

(c) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fixed
asset has been disposed during the year and therefore does not affect the going concern
assumption.

2. (a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals.

(b) ln our opinion and according to the inlormation and explanations given to us, the procedures
of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size ol the company and the nalure of its business.

(c) ln our opinion and on the basis ol our examination of the records, the Company is generally
maintaining proper records ol its inventories. No material discrepancy was noticed on
physical verification of slocks by the management as compared to book records.

3. (a) According to the inlormation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register maintained under
Section 301 ol the Companies Act, 1956. The amounl outstanding has been reported to
be trade debt. Consequently, the provisions ol clauses iii (b), iii(c) and iii (d) of the order
are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has taken loan
from thirteen parties listed in the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Acl 1956. The maximum amount involved during the year was Rs. 472.10 lacs and the
year end balance of loans taken from such parties were Bs. 134.79 lacs. We have been
informed thal the loans have been taken from the parties which are exempt under the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. These loans have not been verilied
by us and we have relied on the management certiJicate.

(c) ln our opinion the terms and conditions of unsecured interest free loans taken from the
parties listed in the register maintained under section 301 of lhe Companies Act, 1956
are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(d) No stipulation with regard to the payment has been made hence no comments are offered
whether the company is regular in repayment of principal and il there is any over due
balance.
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5.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is generally
an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the company and the
nature of its business, for the purchase of inventories & fixed assets and payment for expenses
& for sale of goods. During the course of our audit, no major instance ol continuing failure to
correct any weaknesses in the inlernal controls has been noticed.

a) Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and
explanations provided by the managernent, the particulars o{ contracts or arrangements
relerred to in section 301 ol the Act have been entered in the register required to be
maintained under that seclion.

b) As per inlormation & explanations given to us and in our opinion, the transaction eniered
into by the company with parties co./ered u/s 301 of the Act does not exceeds five lacs
rupees in a financial year therefore requirement of reasonableness of transactions does
not arises.

We have been informed that securiiy de'posiis as appearing in Schedule-4 of the balance
sheet have been taken/accepted from the suppliers, customers and others oniy ior the purpose
of business of the Company and unsecured loan have been taken from relatives af directors
which are exempt under the Companies (Aoceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. These deposits
have not been verified by us and we have relied on the management certiticate.

As per information & explanations given by the management, the Company has an internal
audit system commensurate with its size and the nature ol its business.

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has
been prescribed by the Central Governrnent under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209
of the Act and we are of the opinion that prinra facie the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained.

9. (a) According to ihe records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, lnvestor Educalion and Protection Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, lncome-tax,
Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, cess to the extent applicable
and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities. According to the informati,Jn and explanataons given to us there were no
outstanding statutory dues as on 31 'r of l\/arch, 2C'13 ior a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the recorcj of the Company & information and explanation given to us, there
are no dues of Sales Tax, lncome Tax, Cr.lstom duty, Wealih tax, Excise duty, Service Tax
& Cess which have not been deposited on account oi| any dispute, other than the following:

6.

7.

L

Sr.
No.

Nam6 of Statut€ Nature ol dues Amount
{Rs. in L,qcs}

Forum rvhere elispute is
pending

1 Central Excise Classilication of
credit u/hether as
lnput or capital goods

J. O.l Punjab & Haryana
H!gh Court Chandigarh

2. Delhi Sale Tax Act Sales Tax Form ST-l 3.66 Asstt. Commissioner Zone-1
Delhi
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10.

11.

The Company does not have any accumulated loss and has not incurred cash loss during the
financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion lhat, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

12. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
loans and advances on the basis of security by.way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities.

13.

14.

The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi /mutual benefit tund/society. Therefore, the provision
of this clause of the Companies (Auditor's Repon) Order, 2003 (as amended) is not applicable
to the Company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor,s Fleport) order, e003 are not
applicable to the Company.

According tothe inlormation and explanations given to us, the Company has given a guarantee
of Rs.490 lacs (outstanding balance Rs. 204.83 lacs) on behalf of T.C. Spinners pvt. Ltd.,
Lalru in favour of uco Bank. ln our opinion the terms of guarantee given are not prejudicial in
the interest of the company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief ar'rd according to the informaiion and explanations
given to us, term loans availed by the Coml:any were, prima facie, applied by the Company
during the year for lhe purposes for which the loans were obtained.

Based on the inlormation and explanations Eiven to us and on an overall examination of the
Balance Sheet of the Company as at 3l"tMarch, 2013, we report that no funds raised on
short{erm basis have been used for long{€rrm investment by the Company.

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us
by the management, we report that the Contpany has not made any prelerential allotment of
shares during the year.

The Company has no outstanding debentures during the period under audit.

The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year.

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us,
we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

15.

16.

17.

18.

'I 9.

20.

21.

Place : Muktsar
Date : 14.05.2013

For RAKESH BANSAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(RAKESH BANSAL)
PROPRIETOR

MembershipNo. 090278
FRN 011474N
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BALANCE SHEETAS AT 31.03.2013 ln Rs Lacs, Except as Other wise Stated

Particulars Note
Year Ended Year Ended

As At As At
31March,2013 31March,2ol2

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Share Capital
ReseNes and surplus

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

PENDING ALLOTMENT

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borrowings
Deferred tax Liabilities
Other Long Term Liabilities
Long term Provision

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other Cur.ent Liabilities
Short term provisions

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS :

Tangible assets
lntangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
lntangible assets under development

Non-current lnvestment
CURRENT ASSETS
Current investment
Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term loans and advances
Other Current Assets

Sub Total

Sub Total

2.3

2.4.1
2.4.2
2.4.3
2.4.4

1,000.00
6,124.68
7,124.6a

100.00

4,366.06
2,417.?9
6,l1 9.25

334.26

13,237.36

3,S52.16
2,110.81

843.09
281.95

7,088.01

27,550.05

16,257.47
0.00

624.35
0.00

16,881.82

1,127.00

0.00
2,431.83
4,606.48

330.52
't,'108.36
1,064.04

9,541.23

27,550.05

1,000.00
4,736.50
5,736.50

100.00

6,060.87
1,911.53
4,921.58

289.51

13,183.49

3,409.62
3,666.48

610.77_

7,686.87

26,706.86

12,252.21
0.00

3,780.93
0.00

'16,033.'t4

727.OO

0.00
3,593.23
4,2A6.49

23s.44
1,203.97

627.59

9,946.72

26,706.86

2.1
2.2

Sub Total

TOTAL

2.5.1
2.5.2
2.5.3
2.5.4

2.6
2.6
2.6
2.6

Sub Total

2.6.2

2.7.1
2.7.2

2.7.4
2.7.5
2.7.6

Sub Total

TOTAL

Document Annexed;
1. SignilicantAccounting Policies
2. Notes to Accounls

As per rcport of even date attached

'oT 
BAKESH BANSAL & CO.

Chartered Accountanls

(Rakesh Bansal)
Proprietor
M.No 090278

Place : Rupana, (Muktsar)
Date : 14.05.2013

(Dr Alay Salia)
Chairman-Cum Manglng I)irecior

(A.K.Khurana)
VP.(Finance)

(B.K.Bhandari)
Whole Time Direclor

(Bakesh Kumar Dhuria)
Company Secretary
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SATIA INDUSTR!ES LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AS ON 31.03.2013

Particulars

l) Bevenue frorn operations (Net of Excise)
ll) Other lncome

lll) Toial Revenue (t+ )
lV) Expenses I

Cost of Material Consumed

Cost of Purchases of yarn Division
Change in inventories of finjshed goods,work
tn progress and stock in trade
Employees Benefit Expenses

Finance Cost

Depreciation and Amortization expenses
Oiher Expenses

Total expenses

Protit before exceptional and extrao.dinary
items and tax (llFtv)
Exceptional items

Prolit before extraordinary items and tax (V-Vl)
Extraordinary items

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax

(2) Deferred Tax

Profit (Loss) 1or the period trom continuing
operations (Vll-VIll)

Xll) Proiiv (Loss) from discontinuing operations
Xlll) Tax expenses of djscontinuing operations
XIV) Profiv (losst from discontinu;nq operalrons

(After tax) {X -X t)

XV) Proflt (Loss) toi the period (Xt+XlV)
XVI) Earnings per equity share

Basic

Diluted

In Rs Lacs,Except as Other wise Stated

Year Ended
Note As At

Year Ended
As At

3lMarch,2013 31March,2ot2
2.4 27.845.17 23,925.39
2.9 338.89 333.15

28,1A4.07 24,25A.54

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.14

2.15

2.16

10,382.08

153.08

226.55

1,779.50

1,479.06

1,005.19

11,195.37

26,220.A2

'1,963.25

0.00

1,963"2s

68.81

1,894.44

0.00

506.26

1,388.18

9,300.18

34.61

(215.63)

1,47a.86

1,42a.497

910.21

10,810.4s

23,747.16

511.38

0.00

511.38

13.68

497.70

100.29

(1.63)

399.04

v)

vt)
VID

v D

tx)
x)

xt)

2.17

2.14

2.19

1,388.18

13.88

13.69

399.04

3.99

As per report of even date attached
for RAKESH BANSAL & CO.
Charterod Accountants

(Rakesh Bansal)
Proprietor
M.No 090278

Place : Bupana, (Muktsar)
Date : 14.05.2013

(DrAjay Satia)
Chakman-Cum Manging Drector

(A.K.Khurana)
VP(Finance)

(R.K.Bhandari)
Whole Time Director

(Fakesh Kumar Dhuria)
eompaIy Secretary
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements

Corporate lnlormation:-

Satia lndustries Limited lormerly known as Satia Paper Mills Limited (herein after referred to as
'The Company') is a manufacturer ol Writing and Printing Paper. The company is also engaged in
generation of power and trading activilies in Cotton & Yarn.

1. SignificantAccounting Policies:-

Basis ol Preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
mandalory Accounting Standards issued by the The lnslitule of Chartered Accountants
of lndia and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Iinancial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except where otherwise stated,
and on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consislently applied by the
Company and are consistent with those used in previous year.

Fixed Assets:

Fixed Assets are shown at Historical Cost. Cost ol the fixed assels comprises purchase
price, duties, levies and direcVindirect attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working
condition for intended use. Borrowing cost related to acquisition or construction of the
qualifying fixed assets lor the period up to the completion of lheir acquisition and installation
are included in the cost of the assets. Expenditure lor addition, improvement and renewals
are capitalized and expenditure for repair and maintenance are charged to Profit & Loss
Account.

Depreciation:-

1.3.1 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method on prorata
basis from the date of acquisition over the useful life & in the manner prescribed
in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

1.3.2 Lease hold land is amortized over the remaining perjod of lease.

1.3.3 Depreciation on the amount of addition made to Fixed Assets due to exchange
fluctuation is provided over lhe remaining uselul life of the asset to which the
lluctuation relates.

1.3.4 Depreciation on the amount ol addition made to Fixed Asset due to up gradation/
improvement is provided at the rate applied to the existing assets. Patents and
trademarks, sollware etc are accounted at their cost ol acqu!sition and
amortized over their estimated economic lite not exceeding 10 years. Leasehold
improvements are charged to the profit and loss account over the primary period
of lease.

lnvestments

lnvestments are staled at cost less provision Jor permanent diminution in the value of
long term investment

1.1

'1.2

1.3

1.4
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1.5 lmpairment ot Fixed Assets:

consideration is given at each barance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment of the carrying amount of the company's Fixed Assets. rf any
indication exists, an assets recoverabre amount is estimaied. An impairment ross is
recognized whenever the carrying amount ol assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling prjce and value in use. ln
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value based on an appropriate discount faclor. lmpairment loss is recognized in the
Profit & Loss Account.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

1.6.1 Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the signilicant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer. Sales are net ol return, volume discount
and sales tax but including excjse duty.

1.6.2 lncome from CER/VER/REC

Income lrom Carbon Emissjon Reductions (CER)/ Voluntary Emission
Beductions (VER)/ Renewable Energy Certilicates is recognized when the project
is registered with the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate iha;ge
(UNFCCC).

lnsurance claims are shown separatery under the head other income and corresponding
expenses are shown under respective expense head in lhe profjt and Loss A"/C.

Valualion of lnventories:-

Raw Materials, Stores & Spares:

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held lor use
in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products,
in which they will be incorporated, are expected to be sord at or above cost. cost or Raw
materials is determined on a monthry moving weighted average basis and cost or
chemicals, stores and spares is determined on transaction moving weighted average.
Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods:
Lower of cost and net realizable value. cost includes direct malerials and labour and a
proportion ol manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of
finished goods except lying in the factory premises includes excise duty.
By Products and Waste:

Net realizable value

Net realizable value is the estimated seling price in the ordinary course ol business,
Iess estimated cosls of completion and to make the sale.

1.6

1.7

1.8
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

lnitial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction-

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a loreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of
reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are
recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Forward Exchange Contracts

ln respect of forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company, the difference
between the contracted rate and the rate at the date of transaction is recognized as gain
or loss over the period ol contract except lor difference in respect ol iiabilities incurred
for acquiring fixed assets from a country orltside lndia, in u/hich case such difference is
adjusted in the carrying amcunt of the respective fixed assets. Exchange differences on
such contracts are recognized in the siatement of prolit and loss in the year in which the
exchange rates change. Any prolit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward
exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense for the year.

1.10 Borrowing Cost

lnterest & other costs incurred by the company in connection wth the borrowing of funds
are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred unless activitres
that are necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for ils intended use are in progress.

1.11 Government Grants

Government grants recei./ed as capital incentives are credited to capital reserve.
Government grants in other forms are credited to Profit & Loss Account.

Government grants relating to specific assets are disclosed as deduction lrom the gross
value of the assets concerned.

1.12 Retirement Benefits

1.12.1 Betirement benefits in the form of Provideni Fund and Pension Schemes are
charged to the Profit & Loss Account of ihe year rvhai] the contributions to the
respective funds are due.

1.12.2 Gratuity liabiiity under the payment of Gratu;ty Act and provision for leave
encashment is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuariai valuation
made at the end of gach financial vear.
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1.12.3 The Company's gratuity benelit scheme is a defined plan. The Company,s net
obligation jn respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducied.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method,
which recognizes each period ol service as giving rise to addjtional unit of
employee benelit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the
tinal obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value the estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under
defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on government securities
as at the balance sheet date.

When the calculation results in a benefit to the company, the recognized assets
is limited to the net total of any unrecognized actuarial losses and past service
costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the profit & loss account.
1.13 Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership ol the leased item are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in the profit & Loss Account on a Straight-
Line basis over the lease term.

1 ,14 Accounting tor taxes on income

Provision for tax on income is made after taking inio consideration benefit admissible
under the provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1961 . Deferred tax resulting from ,Timing

difference' between book & taxable prolit is accounted for using the tax rates &
laws that have enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is
recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty
that the assets will be realized in future.

1.15 Export incentives in case of export under DEpB enti ement, incentive has been
valued on the specific rates allowed on the relevant item of export.

1.16 Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources wlll be required to setfle the
obligation, in respect ol which a reliable estimate can be made. provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best management estimate
required to settie the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2. NOTES ON ACCOUNT OF THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2013
2.1 SHARE CAPITAL

The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of
Rs. 10/-. Each holder ol equity shares is entifled to one vote per share.

20,00,000 shares out ol the issued,subscribed and paid up share capital were allotted as bonus
(20,00,000) shares in the last five years by capitalization oi Reserves.

ln the event of Liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entifled to receive
any of the remaining assets of the company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts. However,
no such preferential amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number oi
equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reconcilation of number of share outstanding : No. of Shares

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholdertmembers and other declarations
received.from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both
legal and beneflcial ownerships of shares.
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ln Rs Lacs,except as othenwise stated

Year Ended
As On

31March,2013

Year Ended
As On

31March,2012
Authorized:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
'1 20,00,000 (1 20,00,000)equity shares
lssued Subscibed and Paid-Up:
Equity Shares of Fls. 10/- each
100,00,000 (100,00,000)equity shares fully paid-up

Total

1200.00 '1200.00

'1000.00 1000.00

'1000.00 1000.00

Year Ended
As On

31March,2013

Year Ended
As On

31March,2012
Number of shares at the beginning
Add : Share issued
Number of Share at the end

'10,00,000

0
10,00,000

o
10,00,000 10,00,000

Year Ended
As On

31March,2013

% Holding
' in the

SHAFES

Year Ended
As On

31March,2012

o/o Holding
in the

SHARES
Equity Shares of Bs 10 each fufiy paid
Sh. Ajay Satia
Smt. Bindu Satia
Sh. Anil Satia
Mr. Ankit Satia
Mr Dhruv Satia
S.D.S Cotton (P) Ltd
Muktsar Fincap Pvt.Ltd

147 4861
751094
567719
793344
543169

1518285
1572AOO

14.750/o

7.50"/.
5.67"/"
7.93"/"
5.430/0

15.18%
15.72./o

1474861
7 51094
567719
793344
543169

15'18285
1572800

14.75"/.
7.50./.
5.67"/"
7.930/0

5-43"/"
15.180/o
15-720/"



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2.2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve-State Subsidy

Opening Balance
Add: Transferred f''om Profit and Loss account
Closing Balance

lnvestment Utilisation Reserve

Opening Balance
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss account
Closing Balance

Profit and Loss account
Surplus - Opening Balance
Add: Net profit after tax transterred from
Statemeni of Profit and Loss

tsalance ln Profit and Loss accounl

Total

65.00 65.00

65.00

78.43

65.00

78.43

78.43

4593.07
1388.18

74.43

4194.03
399.04

5981.25 4593.07

6124.58 4736.50

2,3 Share Application Money

The Company has received Share Application money of Rs.300.00 Lacs ( Rs.175.l2 Lacs in financial
year 2003-04, Rs.92.33 Lacs in the financial year 2004-2005 and 32.55 Lacs in financial year
2005-2006) from promoters and associates to partly finance the project cost approved and stjpulated
by Financial lnstitution anci Bank. During the year ended 31 .03.06 the company has allotted 20,00,000
Equity shares @ 10 per shares amounting to Rs.200.00 lacs to the Promoters anci their associates
on prelersnlial basis as per approval received from SEBI and remaining share application money
of Rs.100.00 lacs againsi which shares will be allotted in luture as permitted under the statue.
These funds were utilized in the year of receipt for purpose of capital expenditure as per scheme
approved by the linancial institutions and ihe terms of allotment are as below:-
No. ol Balance Shares Proposed to be issued: i403SZ
The amount ol premium: Rs. 61.25
The company have sufficient authorised share capital amounl for allotment of shares against
the share application^

2.4 Non Curreni Liabilities
2.4.1 Long Term Borrowings : Term Loans trom Banks

The above loans are secured by first charge by way of equitable fiortagage of company,s
lmmoveable propefiies, present and future and hypothecation of company's moveable assets
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Year Ended
. As On

3lMarch,2012
Punjab National Bank
Cential Bank of lndia
Vehicle Loan

'1675.'19

2490.39
200.48

2480.19
215.55

4366.06 6060.87



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

present and future in Favour of PNB & CBI on Parri Passu basis and further personally guaranteed
by the Managing Director and a Director ofthe company. The loan due t0 PNB are turther secured
by pledge of24,00,000 equity shares held by promoters, except vehicle loans which are secured
by hypothecation of the specific assets only.

lnstalments for repayment of term loans due to be paid in next year amounting to Rs 1538.34
Lacs has been considered as current Assets by the Company and are included as long terms
liability.

2.4.2 DEFERHED TAXES

Deferred tax Liabilities

Related to the Fixed Assets

Deferred Tax Asseb
Related to the disallowances under section 43B of the
lncome Tax Act,1961

2.4.3 OTHER LONG.TERM LIABILITIES

UNSEGURED LOAN :

Security Deposits

From Banks

From Body Corporate

From Other than Body Corporale
From Directors

5059.51

932.94

0.00

126.80

0.oo

3639.76

1009.10

4.135

78.4'l
190.17

2.4.4 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

The estimates of future salaryincreases, considered in a acturialvaluation,take account of iRflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,such as supply and demand in the employment
market.
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

working capital Borowings are secured by hypothecation of 
"[ "to"*" 

of ,"* materiar stores, work in progress
finished stock and book debb in addition to personal guarantee by M.o Ci oi;or or n" *rnpany. rn addition to thisthe working limits are turther secured by any of secon'o eanieaisy crr"rG on ar m" n 

"o "*r"6 "t 
t 

" 
c"rpr"v.

2.5.2 Trade Payabtes

2.5 Current Liabitities

2.5.1 Short Term Borrowings

2.5.3 OTHEB CURRENT LIABILITIES

2.5.4 SHORT-TEFM PFOVISIONS

2.6 NON CURRENT ASSETS

2.6.1 FTXED ASSETS

A detail chart depicting of fixed assets of the company and depreciation thereof has been attached as Annexure-A
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Year Ended As On
3lMa.ch,2012

Working Capital Loans: Banks (Rupees Loan)
Punjab National Bank
Central Bank of lndia
Bill Discounting

Total

2849.25

847.37

155.54

2476.10

850.14
83.38

3852.16 3409.62

Particulars

Sundry Creditors:
Micro.Small & Medium Enterprises
Others

Acceptances not due for payments
Total

Year Ended As On
3l March.2013

Ygar Ende As On
31Mareh,2012

24.88
123.40

1962.53

20.28

2394.85

1251 .35
2110.81 3666.48

Particulirs

Statutory Liabilities

Advance from Customers
lnterest Accrued But not Due
Other Liabitities

Total

Year Ended As On
3lMareh-2ot3

76.85

341 .15

27.45

397.64

49.40

172.30

102.59

286.48
843.09 610.77

Particulars

lncome-Tax (Net)

Total

Yeai End€d As On
31llarch,2013

Year Ended As On
31March,2012

281.95 0.00

281.95 0.00

Year Ended As On
3l March,2013

Gross Block
Less Depreciation
Net Block

23945.44

7687.97
18988.55

6736.34
16257.47 12252-21
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SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

lntangible Assets
There are no intangible assets.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Building under Construction

Plant and Machinery under Erection

Advance to suppliers lor Capital Goods

Others

lntangible Assets under development
There are no intangible assets under development.
2.6.2 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Non-current lnvestment - al cost
Trade lnvestment (Unquoted)
5450000 Equity Shares of Bhandari Export lndustries Ltd
(5450000) ol Rs. l0 Each at par

5820000 Equity Shares oI T.C Spinners(p) Ltd o{ Rs.10 each
at par (182000)

Total

445.00
'182.00

2.7 CUFRENT ASSETS
2.7.1 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
There are no current investments.
2.7.2 lnventories

Raw Materials,Chemicals & Fuels

Stock in Process

Semi Finished Stock

Finished Stocks

Consumable stores,spares and Packing material

Scrap

Agriculture Development Expenses

Total

52'1.43

134.49

548.65

519.07

670.10

10.88

27.21

1348.05

133.5

639.94

656.27

805.54

9.93



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2.7.3 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Over Six Months

Other Debts

Less: Provision lor doubtful debts

117.55

4168.94

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

2.7,4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand

Balance with Banks

Dratycheque in transit

Fixed Deposit with Banks against Margin Money*

Fixed Deposit with Banks (Others)

3.23

1.03

226.49

97.00

2.7.5 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

LOANS & ADVANCES

EXCISE DUTY DEPOSITED

DEPB PENDING FOR UTILIZATION

INSURANCE CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

SALES TAX DEPOSITED AGT APPEAL

INSURANCE PREPAID

PREPAID EXPENSES

RENT ADVANCE

MISC. RECOVERABLE

EDUCATION CESS ON SERVICE TAX (GOODS FREIGHT)

SEFVICE TAX RECOVERABLE

996.28

0.22

o.42

0.00

1.96

28.0'l

4.70

o.'17

26..11

0.02

3.34

1107.54

2.92

0.96

1.64

1 .96

2't.07

0.10

26.11

0.00

23.52
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ADVANCE LEASE RENT A,/C.

PUNJAB STATE POWER CORPOBATION LTD

SERVICE TAX ON WORKS CONTRACT

44.97

1.22

0.94

12.66

0.00

0.o0

1108.36 1203.97

, (Unsecured,considered good unless otherwise stated)

2.7,6 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Deposit with Excise(including balance under Cenvet
against inputs and capital goods)

Secudty/Iender deposits

MAT Credit Entitlement

lnterest Receivable

2.8 REVENUE FROM OPERATION

'lncludes inter divisional sales of Rs. 1384.19

Gross Sales*

Less: Excise Duty

Less Inter Divisional Sale ol power ot Steam

Net Sales

2.8.1 PARTICULARS OF SALE OF PRODUCTS

PAPER DIVISION

WRlTlNc & PRINTING PAPER (tnctuding Excise Duty)

SALE OF WOOD PULP

SALE OF WASTE PAPER

SALE OF SCRAP

SUB TOTAL

LESS:GOODS RETURN

2a572.00

0.00

138.82

21.53

28732.34

1.O7

24330.45

72.13

77.82

23.58

24503.98

0
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SALES LESS RETURNS

COTTON & YAFN DIVISION

SALE (YARN)

SALE (COTTON)

SALE (POLYSTER)

SUB TOTAL

cocEN DtVtStON

sALE OF ELECTRtCtTy (COGEN DtVtStON)

SALE OF STEAM

SUB TOTAL

POWER DIVISION

SALE OF WIND POWER

TOTAL

28731.27

0.00

153.47

0.00

1s3.47

723.98

660.19

1384.18

't23.51

24503.98

4.05

30.32

0

34.37

0

0

0.00

'100.29

30392.43 24638.64

2.9 OTHER INCOME

lnterest lncome

lnsurance Claims

Misc lncome

Exchange Rate Variation

Export lncentive

Discounting Earned on DEPB Purchase

Gain on Sale of Assets

lncome from CERA/ER

lncome from REC Accrued

38.42

48.85

53.91

0.00

3.83

2.59

0,00

50.12

141.17

29.12

52.18

174.98

0.00

4.36

8.99

1.00

62.51

0.00

338.89 333.15

2.10 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars

Raw Material

Chemicals

524'1.68

5140.40

5280.83

40'19.35

10382.08 9300.18
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2.11 COST OF PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

2.12 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES STOCK

2.13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE



2.14 FINANCE COST

a) lnterest on Tem Loan

b) lnterest on Working Capital

c) Bank & Other Charges

2.15 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISAI1ON CHARGE

2.16 EXPENSES

a) UTILITIES:.

i) Power Consumed

Less lnter Divisional Purchase

i) Steam Consumed

Less lnter Divisional Purchase

ii) Fuel

iii) Water Supply Charges

iv) Etfluent Treatrnent Exponses

b) Stores and Spare Parts Consumed

c) RoFir & tualntenance :

i) Building

ii) Machinery

iii) Others

d) Pacldng Material & Exp.

e) Handling and Shifting :

i) Raw Material and Chemicals

ii) Fuel

24A6.54

723.99

860.19

660.19

5349.59

59.25

0.00'

1520.61

1762.55

0.00

4746.2A

46.49

5.21

r536.52

77.89

160.52

65.70

635.08

164.28

42.26

1997.15

0-00

78.32

96.96

58.81

586.40

149.94

41.71
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f) Beversal ol Cenvet Credit of ED

9) Job Work Charges

h} SELLING,ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHEB EXPENSES :

a) Printing and Stationery

b) Postage,Telegram & Telephone

c) Sales Tax

d) Travelling & Conveyance

e) Disposal and Cartage

f) Vehicle Running and Maintenance

g) Rent

h) lnstitution and other Building Tax

i) Legal & Prolessional Charges

j) Fee & Subscription

k) Director Sitting Fee

l) Loss on Sale of Assets

m) General Expenses

n) Auditors Remuneration and Expenses

o) Electricity and Water Charges

p) Charity and Donation

q) Freight & Handling outward/Export Exp.

r) Commission

s) Discounts & Rebate

t) Exchange Rate Variation

u) Advertisement

v) Corporate Social Responsibilty Expenses

Total Expenses

275.67

0

18.97

14.29

9.80

64.94

141 .69

24.34

60.22

0.00

55.91

23.06

1 .00

11.46

133.46

2.98

6.92

6.13

107.59

324.08

50.59

20.31

2.17

2.11

492.74

0.00

14.87

12.47

0.00

28.49

131.25

55.70

2.59

32.50

'16.38

0.90

0.00

53.02

2.60

6.30

104.'14

273.43

11 3.9 1

94.30

J. Jt'

0.00

11195.36 10810.45

2.17 Exceptional ltems

There were no exceptional ltems during the year-

2.18 Extraordinary ltems
ln includes Prior period expenses.
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2.19 TAX EXPENSES

Current Tax

Provision lor Tax

Less MAT Credit Entitlement

Net Current Tax

Detfered Tax

386.00

386.00

0.00

506.26

100.29

0

100.29

-1.63

2.20 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments to the extent not provided for)

Bank Guarantee

Unexpired Letter ol Credit (Opened by Bank)
(Material received against LCs has been accounted
tor and credited to suppliers account)

Excise & Customs duty demand in dispute

Sales Tax demand in dispute

Customs Duty in respect of Export Obligation

Corporate Guarantee in favour ol Uco Bank on
Behalf of T.C Spinners Pvt.Ltd(Outsfranding balance Rs. 204.83)

3.83

3.86

53.27

490.00

227.98

't239.09

4.40

3.86

22.78

490.00

2.21 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTAS PER AS.18, ON RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE.

lndividual Owing directly or indirectly
substantial interest in the voting power
of the company.

Key Management Personnel

Relative of key Management(Relevant
Personnel)

M/s T.C. Spinners hn. Ltd.

Mr. Ajay Satia
Mr. R.K. Bhandari
Mr. Janak Raj Sharna

Mrs Bindu Satia (Wife ol Sh. Ajay Saria)

Mr. Anil Satia (Brother ol Sh. Ajay Saria)
Mrs Saloni Satia( Wile ol Sh Anit Satia)
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Smt.Krishna Satia (Mother ol Sh. Aiay Satia)
Mrs. Renu Pahwa (Sister oI Sh. Ajay Satia)
Ms Yachna Satia (Daughter of Sh. Ajay Satia)
Mr. Chirag Satia (Son ol Sh. Ajay Satia)
Mr. Kulbir Pahwa (Sisters Husband of Dr. Ajay Satia)
Mr. Vinod Saluja (Sisters Husband of Dr. Ajay Satia)
Mrs. Archana Saluja (Sister ol Dr. Ajay Satia)
Mrs. Pushpa Bhandari (Mother of Sh. R.K- Bhandari)
Mrs. Kiran Bhandari (Wife of Sh. R.K. Bhandari)
Ms. Vasudha Bhandari (Daughter of Sh. R.K.
Mr. Amit Sharma (Son o{ Sh. Janak Raj. Sharma)
Mr. Dhruv Satia (Son ol Dr Ajay Satia)

Transaction with parties as listed above during the period under consideration:

. Nature cif, ,. ,

. Tfnnsaclion l

Key Managamant,.
Personal .:- ' .,

, Tohl

Loan Receipt

Loan
Repayment

Rent

Managerial
Remuneration

Salary

Purchase

Sales

lnvestment

(-)

(-)

t-l

(-)

t-l

c)

153.08
(15.50)

C)

143.00
(156.17)

381.67
(12.00)

3.60
(3.60)

81.66
(83.32)

131.00
(2.00)

79.62
(22.0oJ

21.O4
(21.46)

(-)
c.Jb

(13.83)

(-)

(-)
400.00

(-)

274.OO
(158.17)

461.29
(34.00)

24.68
(2s.06)

81.66
(83.32)

5.36
(13.83)

c)

153.08
(15.50)

400.00
G)

(Figure in brackets relates to previous year)
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Outstanding balance as on 31.03.2012

. Equity shares have been allotted by M/C T.C. Spinners Pvt Ltd.

2.22 IMPORT (VALUED ON THE COSI INSURANCE AND FREIGHT BASIS)

Nature..ol, , . .

Transiaiiori .
, 'Tolal'

Managerial
Remuneration

Loan and
Advances Credii

Loan and
Advances Debit

Corporate
Guarantee

Share Application
Money Received

Investment in
Share/Application
Money lnvested.

Rent

Salary

(-)

(-)

0
(127.51)

204.43
(287.92\

(-)

582.00
(182.00)

(-)

t-l

2.95
(13.07)

0
1207.171

G)

(:)

4.25
(4.25)

C)

C)

(:)

(-)

128.17
(s8.2e)

(-)

t-l

(-)

t-t
13.04
(7.56)

0.60
(0.1e)

2.95
(13.47)

128.17
(305.46)

0
(127,s1\

204.83
(287.92)

4.25
(4.25\

582.00
(182.00)

13.04
(7.56)

0.60
(0.1e)

' ..Ydar,Ended :

': . r.. -AsOn.
I 3r ltdrch.2oi3' . -

Capital Goods

Raw Material

Stores & Spares

TOTAL

13.72

1220.2

41.74

81.53

1666.35

76.44

'1315.65 1a24.32
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2.23 ACTIVITY IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

. . Year.Endeil',. Aq On
r l3litarch;2013

Travel

lnterest

Bank Charges

Repairs

Legal & Technical Fees and Subscription

Total

2.49

2.81

0.20

7.75

16.55

0.00

10.50

0.94

0.00

10.6 1

29.80 22.O5

2.24 FOB VALUE OF EXPORTS OF GOODS

Year fnded. As On
31March,2O13

Year Ended
As On

31Marchr012

Wdting & Printing Paper

Total

8.02 15.42

8.02 15.42

2.25 MSMED ACT2006

The company has been obtaining conlirmation lrom suppliers who have registered themselves
under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006). Based
on the information available with the company, balance due to Micro & small Enterprises as defined
under the MSlvlED ACT, 2006 is Rs. 24.88 lacs (previous year Rs. 20.28 lacs). Further no interesl
during the year has been paid under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.

2.26 CERA/ER/REC ACCOUNTING

Carbon Emission Reductions (CER), Votuntary Emission Reductions (VER)and Renewable Energy
certificates have been accounted for on accrual basis against the clean Development Mechanism
registered (CDM) project with the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change
(UNFCCC).

2.27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Effective from lst January, 2007lhe company adopted Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2OOS) on
Employees Benefits issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants ol India_
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The following table sets out the status of the gratuity scheme plan as at 31 '03.2013.

i) Table Showing Changes in Present,value ol Obligatlons:

195.28

16.07

20.11

(25.84',)

14.81

222.43

176.63

15.46

17.41

(10.85)

-3.36

195.28

Present value of the obligation
at the beginning ot the period

lnterest cost

Current.service cost

Benefits paid (if any)

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Present value ol the obligation
at the end of the period

2,2 Key results(The amouni to b€ recognized in the Balance Sheet)

222.43

0.00

222_43

195.28

0.00

195.28

Present value ol the obligation
at the end of the period

Fair value ol plan assets at the end

Net Liability(asset) recognised in

Balance sheet and relaied analysis

Funded S1atus'

2.3 Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss:

16.07

20.11

0.00

14.81

50.99

15.46

17.41

0.00

29.50

lnterest cost

Current service.cost

Expected Return on plan

Net Actuarjal (gain)loss recognized in the year

Expense recognized in the statement
of Profit and Loss
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2.4 Experience Adiustment

Experience Adjustment
(Gain)/loss for plan Liabilities

Experience Adjustment
(Gain)/loss for plan Assets

7.OO

0.00

3.6'l

0

3,1 Summary of membership data of valuation and stalistics based thereon:
tYear Endad. .

' : t..Ason.
gl March;2oi3. I

Number of employees

Total monthly salary (ln Lakhs)

Average Past Service(Years)

Average remaining working

lives of employees(years)
Average Age(Years)

1039.00

58.71

8.30

23.30

36.70

994.00

51.67

8.00

23.00

37.00

3.2 The assumption employed for the calculations are tabulated:

. Ygar.Efided,..
. r' , .Aa.on .

31Malch.2ot3l

: i: :Ye:ir.Eir.led .

'As. On .

' 'i1March,2vl2

Discount Rate (Per annum)
Salary GroMh Rate (Per annum)

Mortality

Expected rate of retum

Withdrawal rate(Per Annum)

8.25%
4.OO"/"

LIC 94-96
Ultimate

0

5.00%

4.75"k
4.OA%

Llc 94-96
Ultimate

0

5.OO%

3.3 Benefits valued:

Normal Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years

Salary

Vesting Period

Benefits on Normal Retirement

Benefit on early exit due to
Death and Disability

Limit (ln Lakhs)

Terminal Basic Salary
(excluding) all other
allowances and Perquisites)

5 Years of Service

15/26 "Salary- Number of
Completed Years of Service

As above Except that no
vesting conditions apply.

10.00

Terminal Basic Salary
(excluding) all other
allowances and Perquisites)

5 Years of Service
'1 5/26 "Salary- Number ol
Completed Years of Service

As above Except that no
vesting conditions apply.

10.00
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2,28 Calculation ot Deterred Tax Liability

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets as per Books

Wriften Down Value of Fixed Assets as per lncome Tax

(A) Deferred Liability

Expenses disallowed u/s 438

Unabsorbed Depreciation & Losses

(B) Deferred Assets

Net Deferred (Assets)/Liability

As on date (A-B)

Net Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability for the year

16302.7104

8487.31

7415.40

363.43

c

363.43

7451.97

2417.79

506.26

't2252.21

6071 .1

6'181 . l'1

289.51

0

289.51

5891 .60

1911.53

- t_oJ

2.29 Director's Remuneration

(a) l\4anagingDirector
(i) Salary
(iD Contribution to Provident Fund
(iii) Perquisites

(b) Whole llme Director
(i) Salary
(iD Contribution to Provident Fund
(iii) Perquisites

(c) Directors Sitting Fee

54.00
0.09
0.89

25.89
0.09
0.70

I .OO

60.00
0.09
o.73

2'1.80
0.09
0.61

0.90

2.30. ln the opinion ol Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and betief, the value
on realization of Current Assets, Loans and Advanies in the ordinary course of business
would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in Balance Sheet. The provisjon
lorall known liabilities isadequateand neither isexcess nor short of the amount reason-
ably necessary.

2.31 The liability of Excise Duty on finished goods remaining uncleared in the factory premises
and lying in stock at the end of the year estimated at Rs 28.48 lacs (Previous year Rs.22.26
lacs) are not included in the valuation of inventory of such goods. However the said liability
if provided in accounts would have no efiect on the prcfits for the period.
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For Audit Fee including service-tax

For Other Services

For out of pocket Expenses

(b) Cost Audit Fee including Service Tax

For out ol pocket Expenses

2,32 (a) Statutory Auditor's Remuneraiion:

2.33 Derivative lnstruments and unhedged Foreign currency exposure.

Unhedged Foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet

2.34 Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance wlth AS-20 'Earning Per Share'

Earning Per Share (EPS)

Basic

Diluted

13.88

13.69

3.99

3.92

Diluted EPS is calculated after taking into consideration of potential equity share capital. The
company proposes to issue 140357 nos. of equity shares to promoters and associates (calculated
on basis ol book value of equity shares as on 31.03.2013) under obligalion to linancial institutions
and banks as per scheme sanctioned by linancial institution and bank.
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usD 0.36 (19.16)

EURO 0 (0)

usD 4.37 (9.43)

EURO 0 (4.eo)

Ndt ProfiV (Loss) after tax & before
Extra ordinary ltems (Rs. ln lacs)

Net ProfiV (Loss) after tax & after
Extra ordinary ltems (Rs. ln lacs)

Weighted Average No. of Shares

Diluted potential equity shares

1456.99

1388.18
'10000000

10140353

412.72

399.03

10000000

10174322
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2.35 Du;ing the period the company has made provisions for Minimum Alternative Tax
amo-unting to Rs 386 Lacs against which the company is entitled to MAT credit entiflment
of 386 lacs. The managemant of the company has not recognised any ross for irp"r"r"ni
ol any ol the lixed ol the Company.

2.36 Segment Reportlng

A. Business Segments:

Bas€d on the guiding principres given in As-17 "segment Reporting" issued by the
lnsritute or chartered Accountants or rndia, the Groups business segmenl inctude: writing
& Printing Paper, power generation and yarn division.

B. Geographicalsegments:

since the Group activities/operations are primariry within the country and considering
the nature or products it dears in, the risks and returns are same and as such there i;
only one geographical segment.

C. Segment Accounting policies:

ln addition to the significant accounting policies applicable to the business segments as
set out in note no.1 ot "Notes to the accounts", the accounting poricies in ieration to
segment reporting are as under:

a) Segment Revenue and expenses:

Segment revenue and expenses are direcfly attributable to the segments.

b) Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segmenl and consist
principally of operating cash, debtors, inventories and rixed assets, net of a owances
and provisions which are reported as direct offsets in the barance sheet. segment
liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of creditori and
accrued liabilities.

c) lnler segment revenue:

lnter segment revenue berween operating segments are accounted for at market
price. These transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

d) lnformation about business segments:

The detailed reporting is as per annexure. During the year company has staned a
new segment for agricurture operations of prantation. The cost incurred in this
segment has been treated as prepaid expenses and included in the inventories
which will be set of against the future income under the segment.
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2.37 Current Assets including advances are considered good and in view ol the managemenl of
the company to be realizable within 12 months from the date of Balance Sheet.

2.38 Outstanding balances in sundry debtors, creditors & security deposits are subiect to
confirmation.

2.39 Figures in brackets represent figures of previous year.

2.40 Previous Year's ligures have been regrouped and/or re-arranged wherever considered
necessary. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

For RAKESH BANSAL & CO. For and On behalt of Board ol Directors
Chartered Accountants

(Bakesh Bansal) (Dr.Aiaysatia) (R.K.Bhandari)
Proprietor Chairman-Cum Manging Director Whole Time Dhector
Membership No 090278

Place : Rupana, (Muktsar)
Date : 14.05.2013

(A.K.Khurana) (Rake.shKumarDhuria)
Vice President (Finance) Company Secretary
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1

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOB THE YEAB ENDED ON 31ST MARCH,2013

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET PROFIT EEFORE TAXATION AND EXTBAORDINARY ITEMS

ADJUSTMENT FOR !
DEPRECIATION

LOSS ON SALE OF FJXED ASSETS

INTEREST & OTHER FINANCIAL CHARGES

PROVISION FOR GRATUITV & EARNED LEAVE

INTEREST RECEIVED ( GROSS)

INCOME FROIV INVESTMENT

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

ADJUSTMENT FOR

TBADE & OTHEB RECEIVABLES

INVENTORY INCREASE

TRADE PAYABLE/OTHER LIABILITIES

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

PRIOR.PERIOD EXPENSES(INCOME)

DIRECT TAXES PAID/ADJUSTED

NET CASH FLOW FROIV OPERATING ACTIVITIES(A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

INTEREST RECEIVED

SALE OF FIXED ASSETS

INVESTMENT MADE DURING THE YEAR

SALE OF INVESTMENT

INCOITiIE FROM INVESTI\4ENT

PURCHASE OF FIXED ASSETS

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES(B)

C, CASH FLOW FBOM FINANCING ACTIVITES

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

PROCEEDS FROI.I LONG TERM BORROWINGS

REPAYMENT OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS

INCREASE IN WORKING CAPITALBORROWINGS

PROCEEDS FROIV WORKING CAPITAL BORROWINGS

REPAYMENT OF OTHER LOANS & SECURITY DEPOSITS

PROCEEDS FROM OTHER LOANS & SECURITY DEPOSITS

INTEREST PAID

NET CASH FLOW FBOM FTNANCING ACtTtV|TES(C )

NET CASH INCREASE/(DECREASE)IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD

FoT RAKESH BANSAL & COMPANY
Chadered Accounlanis

-660.83

1161.40

-1041.40

-68.81

0

0

0
-1884.68 -1884_68

-2,226.92

(Rs. in Lacs)
PREVIOUS YEAB

511.38

910.21

-1.00

1386.06

23.35

-29.12

0

2,800.88

1127.24

-616.36

-430.t7 80.71

2,881.59
-13.68

-149.13 (162.81)

2,71a.7a

25.12

55.17

-80.00

0

0
'2735.47 -2735.47

-2,731.14

0

2553.21

-1792.96

203.30

-146.79

569.56

,1386.06

0.26

'12.14

223.30

235 44

CURRENT YEAR

1963.25

1005.19

11.46

1434.06

44.75

-34.42

0

4.420.29

(s40.83)

3,879.46

(68.81)

3,810.65

34.42

19.34

-400 00

0

416.25

-2111.05

442_54

-2227.70

3425.37

-1434.06

-1488.65

95.08

235.44

330 52

(Bakesh Bansal)
Membership No, 090278
Proprietor

Place : Rupana, (Mulitsar)
Date : 14,05,2013

(Dr Ajay Satia)
Chairman-Cum-Manging Director

For and on behalt ol Board ot Directors

(R.K.Bhandari)
Whole Time Director



SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: Malout - Muktsar Road, Village Rupana, District Muktsar-152032

PROXY FORM

|/VVe.................. ..........of.._.........
,.....being a member/ members ol SATTA INDUSTRIES LTD.

hereby appoint.... ...........of............. ...or failing
him.................... of..................... ....asmy/ourprorytovote
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting ol the Company to
be held on 30th day of September, 2013 and at any adjournment thereof.

Note: The proxy must be returned as to reach the Registered office of the company at least 4g
hours before the time for holding the Annual General Meeting. The proxy need not be a member ol
the company.

SATIA INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: Malout - lvluktsar Road, Village Rupana, District Muktsar-152032

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Please complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance ol the hall.

I hereby record my presence at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the company being held on
30th day of September, 2013 at 10:00 A.M. at the Regd. Office of the Company at Malout - MuKsar
Road, Village Rupana, District Muktsar, Punjab.

Full Name of the Member (in Block Letters) , .... ...... ............

Full Name of Prory, if applicable : ......................_....

Folio No.

No. of shares held

Signatures ol Member/Proxy


